HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 09, 2002
1:58 P. M

TAPE HFC 02 — 77, Side A
TAPE HFC 02 - 77, Side B
TAPE HFC 02 - 78, Side A
TAPE HFC 02 - 78, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair WIllianms called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 1:58 P. M

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bill WIlIlianms, Co-Chair
Representati ve El don Miul der, Co-Chair
Representati ve Con Bunde, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft
Represent ati ve John Davi es
Representative John Harris
Representative Bill Hudson
Representati ve Ken Lancaster
Representative Carl Mses
Representative Ji m Wit aker

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Ri chard Foster

ALSO PRESENT

Representative Pete Kott; Ed Fl anagan, Comm ssi oner,
Department  of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent; Nei |
Sl ot ni ck, Deputy Conm ssi oner, Departnment of Revenue;

M chael Hurley, Phillips Al aska, Anchorage; John Bitney,
Legi sl ative Liaison, Alaska Housing Finance Corporation,
Departnent of Revenue; Joe Dubler, D rector of Finance,
Al aska Housi ng Finance Corporation, Departnent of Revenue;
Linda Sylvester, Staff, Representative Pete Kott; Richard
Mastriano, Director, D vision of Labor Standards & Safety,
Department of Labor; Mchael Hurley, Phillips Al aska,
Anchor age; Paul Fuhs, Yukon Pacific

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Dan Fauske, Executive Director, Alaska Housing Finance
Corporation, Departnment of Revenue, Washington D.C.; John

Wagner , Tax Counsel, Omaha, Nebr aska,; Steve Kantor,
Fi nancial  Advi sor, New York; Howard Zucker, Tax/Bond
Counsel, New York; Pat Ganble; Bill O Leary; Stephanie

Madsen; Jeff Brown, Goldman Sacks and Co.:; Paul Bloom E.

House Fi nance Committee 1 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



Whlforth; Bill O Leary, Vice President, Al aska Railroad
Cor poration, Anchorage

SUMVARY

HB 423 An  Act relating to the Alaska Railroad,
authorizing the Alaska Railroad Corporation to
provi de fi nancing for t he acqui sition,
construction, inprovenent, maintenance, equipping,
or operation of facilities for the transportation
of natural gas resources within and outside the
state by others; authorizing the Al aska Railroad
Corporation to issue bonds to finance such
facilities; and providing for an effective date.

HB 423 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

HB 504 An Act relating to the wages of people working in
the fisheries business.

HB 504 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

#HB504
HOUSE BILL NO 504

An Act relating to the wages of people working in the
fisheries business.

REPRESENTATI VE PETE KOTT expl ained that the bill would all ow
the renote processors the sanme opportunity as the non-renote
processors in deducting from an enpl oyees wage, the cost of
food and | odgi ng.

Representative Kott noted that in 1959, the statute was
enacted by the Legislature, which pronulgated regul ations,
whi ch exenpted the renote processors. He stated that was
over-steppi ng the boundary. HB 504 is an attenpt to address
concerns voiced by the renpote processors.

Representative Kott referenced the commttee substitute
whi ch woul d anend the Al aska Wage and Hour Act by adding a
new section dealing with wages paid to enployees in a
fisheries business. An enpl oyer engaging in the fisheries
busi ness may deduct up to $15 dollars each day from the
appl i cabl e m ni rum wage paid to an enpl oyee for the conbi ned
cost of board and | odging provided to the enployee. That
deduction can be made only if it is based on a negotiated
uni on agreenent or a witten agreenent between enpl oyer and
enpl oyee, entered into at the tine of hire and that
specifies the daily rate of deductions for room and board.

House Fi nance Committee 2 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



Representative Kott added that as defined in AS 43.75.290, a
“fisheries business” neans a person who engages in process
fishery resource for sale by freezing, cooking, salting, or
other nmethods and would includes but is not limted to
canneries, cold storages, freezer ships and processing
pl ant s.

Co- Chair Mul der MOVED to ADOPT the work draft, #22-LS1595|P
Craver, 4/8/02, as the version of the |egislation before the
Comm ttee. There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was adopt ed.

Vice-Chair Bunde asked if there were actual cost figures
associated with the board and room

Representative Kott replied that he had not yet acquired the
exact anounts. According to the current federa
regul ati ons, the processors cannot charge over and beyond an
anount that would bring thema profit.

Vi ce- Chair Bunde asked about the fiscal note and how nmany
Al askan processors would it apply to.

Representative Kott replied it would affect about thirty
conpanies. He reiterated that $15 dollars was a fair anount
to pay for three neals a day and | odgi ng.

Representative Lancaster asked if the legislation would be
openi ng the door for renote construction sights.

Representative Kott commented that the “door would be opened
for an industry that already has the door half opened”. He
stressed that the request was not for an exenption but
rather parity for a quality of sonething that is already
taking place. He agreed that another industry could be able
to conme in and pass simlar |egislation.

Represent ati ve Davi es asked what the differences between the
work draft and the original bill was.

Representative Kott explained the two changes which had been
made:

. Addi ng the $15 dollar price; and

. Placing into statute that there nust be a witten
agreenent .

Representative Davies noted that the stipulation that
| odgi ng woul d be “wi thout profit” had not been included.

LI NDA SYLVESTER, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE PETE KOIT, expl ained
that the original |anguage of HB 504 conmes directly from
regul ation. The regulations cone directly fromthe federal
code, which define the fair |abor standards act. Those

House Fi nance Committee 3 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



standards are from federal |egislation enacted in 1938. By
using the ternms "reasonable costs and without profit" wll
create built in protections for the enployee that the
charges will not be too excessive. The commttee substitute
proposes that in lieu of having a determ nation made by the
Departnent of Labor for the reasonable costs, which would be
further defined by non-profiting, new |anguage would be
substituted, indicating the $15 dollar figure. She added
that was a conprom se given the assunption that the $15
dollars is a “reasonable cost” for room and board.

Representative Hudson thought that the fiscal note was
predi cated upon the Departnent interpreting the reasonable
costs without profit. By nodifying that to the “P’ version
it would be renoved. He noted that the $15 dollars was a
set fee and would not indicate the actual costs. He
understood that the fiscal note had been prepared to
determ ne what the reasonable costs woul d be. He believed
the fiscal note could be zeroed out.

Representative Kott agreed and recommended that the question
be posed to Comm ssioner Flanagan from the Departnent of
Labor.

Representative Harris advised that $15 dollars a day would
be charged for each day even if the enployee was not
working. He noted that would have to be agreed upon by the
enpl oyee and enpl oyer before the work began. Representative
Harris requested the bill’s history.

Representative Kott explained that the m ni rum wage issue is
| oomi ng over that industry. He pointed out that nmany of
processing plants would be <closing after this season.
Closing the plants will not help these communities and their
taxati on concerns. In addition to the m ni mum wage change,
there are additional cost driving factors.

Representative Kott stated his intent was to help the
i ndustry and that current regulations are “out of step” with
the statutes.

Representative Harris inquired if this could be corrected
t hrough a regul ati on change rather than a statute change.

Representative Kott did not believe that it could be
corrected through the regul ation process. He noted that the
Adm nistration is “at a place” in which they could renove
the regulation that stipulates alternative public housing
must be available in that area. He wanted to see a
statutory change.

Representative Croft asked if in the adopted work draft,

| anguage had been renoved regarding a determnation of the
room or board price.

House Fi nance Committee 4 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



Representative Kott replied it had been and that $15 dollars
is a reasonabl e anmobunt. He pointed out that testinony heard
fromthe Departnent of Labor acknow edged that $10 dollars a
day was reasonable. The fiscal note was based on that.

Representative Croft asked if it was understood that $15
dollars was both reasonable and fair and that the enployer
woul d not be naking a profit at $15 dollars a day.

Representative Kott agreed and that a profit could not be
made according to the federal standards.

Representative Croft inquired if there was an appropriate
distinction between a site that has an alternative and one
t hat does not.

Ms. Sylvester pointed out that in the original |anguage, the
fair |abor standards act, the act and the act of an enpl oyer
counting the cost of roomand board as a credit toward their
wages has been upheld in federal court. The issue decided
was if the enployee needed to be consulted on that on a
dai ly basis. The federal court upheld the statute and the
determ nation that an enployer could take a credit against

t he wages. The language in the original bill considered
that the reasonable cost would be a profit for the adequate
protection for the enployee. The bill was further anended
to include sone requirenents to the contract. That contract
IS si gned at t he begi nni ng, with the enployee’s
under standing of what the wage and limtations of that work
site wll be. She noted that through a conprom se with the

Finance Chair, rather that relying on the terns and
definitions of the federal code, a $15 dollar substitution
woul d be nade.

Representative Croft warned that soneone mght sign the
agreenent with little understanding of the conditions. He
guestioned what the limtations on the quality of the food
and housing would be once the words |ike “reasonable” and
“fair” were renoved.

Ms. Sylvester acknow edged that the Departnent of Labor had
regi stered those concerns. She added that a conpany could
not take the proposed credit if there was an alternative.
If an enployee made a conplaint, the Departnent of Labor
woul d respond. If there were no value to the food or
| odgi ng, there would be no credit given. She reiterated
that a decision had been made at the federal |evel.

Representative Croft asked if that was included in the
| anguage of the |egislation.

Ms. Sylvester responded that would rest in the nmanner in
which the Departnment of Labor addresses their conplaints.

House Fi nance Committee 5 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



She noted that they previously testified regarding how they
woul d address those situations. They do inspect and if
there is a conplaint, they respond.

Representative Kott nentioned the types of people who are
attracted to the fish processor-type work. For the nost
part, they are students that cone from out of State. He
t hought nost of the workers woul d choose the | odgi ng option.
He pointed out that there are training and transportation
costs associated with these services. The enployers want to
guarantee that the person being hired, understands what they
are getting into. Oten tinmes, when going to renote sites,
the enployee opts for that knowing that they wll not be
distracted by places to spend their noney. It is the intent
of the enployers to attract and retain their seasona
enpl oyees.

Representative Lancaster asked if the legislation would
allow the enployer to draw the $15 dollars if they do not
t ake the housing option.

Representative Kott responded that could be addressed during

the contractual side of the agreenent. He stated that the
Legi slature should not be dictating the terns of the
contract. The terns should be left to each individual

enpl oyer, however, the |anguage should not be concrete. He
comented that the market place would dictate a nunber
between zero and $15 dollars per day. He noted that the
enpl oyee would investigate which enployer would offer the
best deal .

Representative Davies pointed out that if the fish were not
running really well and the enployee was only working eight
hours a day, five days a week, that enpl oyee woul d be making
$1,0000 dollars a nonth. If the legislation were in place,
that sane enpl oyee would be required to pay $450 dollars a
nonth for food and | odgi ng.

Representative Kott admtted that there wll be tines when
the fish are not running, regardless, it would still cost
the enpl oyee sonething to |live and eat where ever they were.
He added that the last thing an enployer wants is to have
their enployees not worKking. He added that the enployee
could be transferred to another renpote site if there was no
wor K. The enployers attenpt to keep all enpl oyees working
nost of the tine.

Representative Davies comented that the enployee could be
“over the barrel” because of the transportation costs. He
foresaw that circunstances could be unbearable for sone
i ndividuals and they would then be really “stuck”.

Representative Kott wunderstood that during the hiring
process, language is clarified that the transportation costs

House Fi nance Committee 6 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



would be paid out to the site and back, based on the
fulfilling the contract. He interjected that there is “zero
tol erance” for the use of drugs and/or alcohol at the site.
If using, the enployees would be sent back at their own
expense.

Representative Davies reiterated his concern with those
times there are no fish

Representative Kott clainmed that would be the last thing
that a processor would want to happen.

Representative WMses questioned how a renpbte site is
det er m ned.

Ms. Sylvester replied that in the regulations, it 1is
indicated that a renpbte site exists iif there are no
alternative places avail able to sleep and eat.

Representative Moses asked if the $15 would be subject to a
| ocal sal es tax.

Ms. Sylvester explained that the tax issue is an Interna

Revenue Service (IRS) question. The IRS determned that it
woul d not be included as incone, because the facilities were
on the prem ses of the enployer. That is the way in which
the enployee gets out of paying taxes on the credit for
wages pai d. For purposes of the wage and hour act and the
fair |abor standards, that |anguage does not consider room
and lodging for the benefit of the enployee, but rather the
cost spent is for the benefit of the enployer. She added
that a person would not be charged a sales tax on that
i ncone.

Representative Witaker noted that the |anguage indicates
that a maxi mum of $15 dollars a day would be taken fromthe
pay relative to the applicable mnimum wage. He asked if
there would be a sliding upward scale if the enployee nade
nore than m ni nrum wage.

Representative Kott explained that was not the intention.
The maxi numis $15 dollars per day. At present tine, renote
sites cannot pay bel ow m ni nrum wage.

Representative \Witaker asked if the intention was no nore
t han $15 dollars per day woul d be charged, regardl ess of the
wage paid.

Representative Kott reiterated that $15 dollars a day was
the maxi num and noted it could be |ess.

Vi ce- Chair Bunde questioned the IRS inpact.

House Fi nance Committee 7 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



Ms. Sylvester explained that under the |IRS code, the $15
credit is not considered part of the wage. However, if the
enpl oyer paid the enployee that $15 dollars, the enployee
woul d then be taxed on that incone.

Ms. Sylvester interjected that there is a floor and that
"zero wages" was the term used for when nore expenses are
acquired then actual wages paid. According to the fair
| abor standards act, the enployer cannot go bel ow what the
m ni mum wage was in January 1%, 1997. The Al aska wage and
hour | aw takes precedence over federal law and is stricter
She reiterated that the State cannot fall bel ow what federal
| aw i s.

Representative Davies asked if the State cannot go bel ow the
federal standard, how could they then deduct the $15
dol | ars.

Ms. Sylvester responded that the people that work in the
canneries nmake a |l ot of noney and they cannot go bel ow $4. 85
per hour |evel. If they did, they would be precluded
because the enpl oyer cannot break federal |aw.

D scussion anpbng Conmmttee nenbers followed regarding the
m ni rum wage concerns and the m ni nrum wage fl oor.

Co-Chair WIlians noted that Al aska pays above the federa
establ i shed m ni nrum wage.

Representative Davies reiterated his concern of what happens
when the enployee is not getting the hours. Under t hat
circunstance, alnost half of the enployee’s incone would be
going to their deduction.

Representative Hudson asked if people comng to Al aska to
work in the sport fishing | odges woul d be affected.

Ms. Sylvester advised that AS 23. 10. 0850 applies and states
that the regulations nmay permt deductions by enployers
payi ng m ni num wage, applicable through the wage and hour
act, to enployees for the reasonable cost as determ ned by
the director on an occupation basis for furnishing board and
| odging. She stressed that it could apply to any situation
of any renote sight; however, the only industry that this
bill applies to is the fisheries business.

Representative Hudson recommended that there be equity in
treat nent. He questioned if the Departnent’s regulations
coul d manage the expense in a simlar fashion.

TAPE HFC 02 - 77, Side B

House Fi nance Committee 8 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



Ms. Sylvester noted that the Departnent of Labor regul ations
allows for that as long as there is alternative | odging
avai |l abl e. The statutes clearly state it wll be on an
occupation basis. She noted that the Departnent could
further discuss that.

Representative Kott interjected that the legislation can
only happen on an occupational basis. He pointed out that
there had been a msinterpretation of the statute regarding
the difference between a renote and a non-renote processing
plant. He maintained that there is no difference.

Representative Harris acknow edged that the bill only deals
with the fisheries business, however, voiced concern that it
could be “turned” to the North Sl ope construction business.

Representative Kott explained that the bill clarifies that
t he m ni nrum wage earner could be penetrated. 1In the case of
construction workers, they earn substantially nore than
m ni mum wage.

Representative Harris advised that he was thinking “down the
road” and his concern when simlar |egislation occurs in the
future to other industries.

Co-Chair Wllians inquired if it would fall under the fair
conpetition standards.

Ms. Sylvester interjected that the issue is regardi ng paying
m ni rum wage. The nost inportant issue is to allow the
enpl oyer to deduct the room and board from the wages.
Currently, regardless of how much an enpl oyee i s naking, the
enpl oyer is prevented from recouping those costs from the
enpl oyee. The anenities create a cost to the enployer;
urban enpl oyers are not asked to float these costs, but the
renote enployers are. The statute instructs the Departnent
to make that determ nation on an occupati onal basis.

ED FLANAGAN, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTNMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE
DEVELOPMENT, voiced strong opposition to the proposed bill.
He stated that an inaccurate rendition of the regulatory
hi story had been provided by the sponsor’s office.

Comm ssi oner Fl anagan noted that the Al aska wage and hour
act was witten in 1959, wth perm ssive |anguage, which
allows the Departnment to “may” pronulgate regul ations that
woul d allow for deductions for room and board. He noted
that was the sane year that the m ni nrum wage was established
at fifty cents over the federal mninum of $1 dollar an
hour. Some of the issues raised at this tinme, placed that
perm ssive |anguage into the bill. No regul ations were
promul gated until 1985. He enphasi zed that the policy has
been consistent through eight Admnistrations and three
different political parties, and indicates that room and

House Fi nance Committee 9 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



board in renpte |locations is not charged to the workers. He
poi nted out that has been the customof this country.

The 1985 regul ations codified what the process was. At that
time, the Departnent stated that there would be all owances
made for reductions. He claimed that if the notion that
room and board was being a “fringe” benefit was accepted,
new and di sturbing ground would be broken. The State would
be well on its way to charging all other industries the
sane. He stressed that the Departnent has been consi stent
and that there has been no oversight on the interpretation.

Comm ssioner Flanagan identified the significance of the
proposed change. There are sonme cannery workers that do
make noney, however, he pointed out that they usually work
80 hours a week. Wth that nmany hours, the person would be
clearing $565 dollars per week. G ven the proposed wage
increase, they would nmke $775 dollars per week. He
rem nded nenbers, that in those areas, there is no quality
of life. Sone of these enployees do not work the rest of
the year. These people cannot afford this |egislation.

Comm ssi oner Flanagan pointed out that the bill has an
i medi ate effective date. It could be inposed before the
m ni rum wage goes into effect. That would knock down their
salaries to less than $5 dollars an hour. That would be a
shane.

Comm ssi oner Fl anagan asserted that the Legislature should
be hel ping people “nove over” the poverty |level and m ni num
wage. He stressed that the ones who will benefit fromthe
change are the enployers. He pointed out that the
percentage of actual Al askan workers has risen in that
i ndustry from24%ten years ago to currently about 40%

Comm ssi oner Fl anagan enphasized that the proposed bill is
“bad | egislation”. The medium age for a cannery worker in
the State of Alaska is 34 years old. He disagreed wth
comments made by Representative Kott that wusually college
kids are hired. Comm ssioner Flanagan advised that there is
only one plant that hires the old nodel *“college kid”,
hopi ng to make a "bundle". Current day enpl oyees are “real”
people trying to make a |iving.

Comm ssi oner Flanagan urged that the Commttee reconsider
noving the bill

Co-Chair WIllianms stated that the bill was attenpting to
help the processors. He wunderstood that the |ogging
industry used to pay room and board to loggers living in
renote sites.

Comm ssi oner Flanagan replied that if they were paying for
room and board, they were not in conpliance.

House Fi nance Committee 10 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



acknow edged that the industry was having difficult tines,
but to change the nethod in aiding them and denyi ng workers
an increase in the mninmm wage is bad policy. \Wen tines
were better in fishing, the processors nade noney, the

communities and fishernen nade nore noney. The cannery
wor kers only make m ni num wage, regardless of the health of
the industry. He reiterated that they do not nake nore

noney when tines get better.

Co-Chair WIllians reiterated that the legislation was an
attenpt to help the processors.

Comm ssioner Flanagan agreed that was the intent of the
| egi sl ati on, however, stated that was not a good renedy.
Comm ssi oner Flanagan disagreed with turning the State’s
back on 33 years of practice and now begi nning to charge for
room and board. He added that the action would affect al
the ot her industries.

Co-Chair WIllianms stated that the fishing industry is “down
on their knees” at this tinme. The Legislature is attenpting
to help that industry. He acknow edged that the fishing
i ndustry is changing.

Vi ce-Chair Bunde asked if there was a shortage of |abor in
the industry.

Comm ssi oner Flanagan replied that there has been in recent
years and that it noves up and down. There have been
attenpts to nove people from one location to another
attenpting to follow the fish down.

Vi ce-Chair Bunde suggested that currently it is nore of an
enpl oyees rather than an enpl oyers market.

Comm ssi oner Flanagan replied that was true two years ago,
however, he was not sure about the circunstances at this
tinme. He noted that there have been many cl osures, however,
the processors have submtted nore job orders than I ast
year. Comm ssi oner Flanagan reiterated that the work canps
are a work, sleep, eat, environnent. The cannery workers
make very little for the anount of work they do.

Vi ce- Chair Bunde cl ai ned that sone people chose to work hard
so that they can “take the rest of the year off”.

Representative Davies comented that it would help the
processors if the mninmm wage were cut in half. He asked
Comm ssi oner Flanagan if the federal floor concerns had been
addr essed.

RI CHARD MASTRI ANO, DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF LABOR STANDARDS &

SAFETY, DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, commented that he did not know
what Ms. Syl vester was referring to. |If someone cane to the

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



Department with a contractual situation and if that enpl oyee
agreed and voluntarily signed the contract, the enployer
could make those deductions. It could be below mninmm
wage.

Comm ssioner Flanagan interjected that there have been
situations in which the enployee ended up with a zero
paycheck.

M. Mastriano added that that there have been tines in which
transportation and other costs were deducted from the
enpl oyee wages, |eaving the enployee with no check. Those
are the types of conplaints that an investigator would | ook
i nto.

Representative Kott asked if M. Mstriano had visited the
processing plant in Petersburg.

M. Mastriano replied that was not |located in his area and
that he had not visited it.

Representative Kott asked if that plant was allowed to
deduct their food and | odging costs. He noted that they
were not a renote site.

Comm ssioner Flanagan replied that the lcicle plant in
Pet er sburg pays their enployees $7 dollars per hour.

Representative Kott thought that with Icicle deducting those
costs, they were penetrating the m ni nrum wage.

Comm ssi oner Flanagan explained that there are alternatives
for food and | odgi ng in Petersburg.

Representative Kott suspected that there would be only a few
people living in the canpgrounds and not taking advantage of
the option offered by Icicle. He clainmed that there are
benefits to eating in the canp provided neal facility.

Comm ssi oner Fl anagan replied that there are other
alternatives in Petersburg and that a person coul d probably
subsist on a lot less than $20 dollars per day. Deducti ng
is illegal and that has been the law for over forty years.
The | egislation proposes to change the definition of room
and board, which is a najor departure fromwhat the practice
has been. He acknow edged that there are “tough” tinmes for
the fishing and processing industry but they should not be
“hel ped out on the backs of workers”.

Representative Kott pointed out that for some workers, the
enpl oyer has dropped their pay below mninum wage. He
stated that it should be nmade equitable and should be either
rejected or repeal ed. He did not understand how the State

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



coul d di stinguish between rural and urban in an occupati onal
setting.

Comm ssi oner Fl anagan explained the area practices and the

established situation in the State at t hat tinme,
differentiates between wurban and rural. The industry
guaranteed that certain industries would be excluded when
there was an alternative. In some |ocations such as
Pet ersburg or Kodiak, there is a local work force that works
in places. He noted that a formal canpground could be an

option in Petersburg and Kodi ak.

Representative Kott clainmed that the regulation has been
di scrim natory based on “renoteness”.

Co-Chair WIlianms characterized that the bill as hel ping the
i ndustry.

Representative Harris acknow edged that HB 504 was i ntended
to help the industry. He inquired if there had been an
effort with the Admnistration to work out the differences
to make the legislation “nore appealing”.

Representative Kott replied that there has not been nuch
di al ogue with the Admnistration. He clainmed that it was a
“cut and dry” issue.

Representative Croft clainmed that there is a fundanenta
di fference between having a choice and not having a choice.
When a non-renote processor offers sub-standard housing for
the crew, they can go sonewhere else. He asked the
Departnent's authority to nonitor or change the condition of
t he provi ded housi ng and food.

Comm ssioner Flanagan responded that the authority for
wor ker housing is listed under the Cccupational Safety and
Health Adm nistration (OSHA). He did not know how they
would deal with a conplaint regarding the quantity and/or
quality of the food.

Representative Croft asked what woul d happen if there was an
al l egation that the worker was not getting their $15 dollars
worth of food and bed.

M. Mastriano responded that if soneone were to conplain to
the Departnent about the reasonable costs charged, the
Departnent goes by the federal guidelines and would perform
a reasonabl e cost audit.

Representative Croft wunderstood that the Departnent would

not have the authority, under the proposed legislation, to
define “reasonabl e”.

House Fi nance Committee 13 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



Comm ssi oner Flanagan stated that the fiscal note was based

on the original bill. If lawfully adequate room and board
were being provided, the cost would probably be over $15
dol | ars. If there were conplaints, the Departnent would

have to investigate. The $15 dollar anendnent noves nuch of
the fiscal note and there would probably not be nore than
forty or fifty audits a year.

Representative Davies and Co-Chair WIIlianms argued over
whet her to discuss the bill further.

Co-Chair Mulder interjected that there was bond counsel on
line to discuss HB 423. He noted that was costing the State
$150 dollars per hour for the legal advice. He pointed out
that he had urged Co-Chair Wllianms to wap up discussion on
HB 504 nore quickly. He apologized to the Conmttee.

Co-Chair Ml der digressed and asked if the ergonomcs
regul ations were still in place.

M. Mstriano replied that the Departnment was in the process
of rewiting those regul ations.

Representative Croft asked the source of “reasonable and
fair” with regard to the food and | odgi ng and the context in
which it was bei ng used.

M. Mstriano replied that was a federal source reference.
He added that the costs of actually operating the facility

nmust be taken into account, and not for profit. If the
facilities were simlar, they would |ook at what the cost
for utilities & depreciation would be. All t hose

considerations take into account what a reasonable profit
is.

Representative Croft asked how long that had that been a
part of federal |aw.

M. Mstriano replied since 1938 and that whenever a
reasonabl e cost is determned, profits are not included.

Co-Chair WIllians stated that HB 504 would be HELD in
Committee.

HB 504 was HELD in Commttee for further consideration.

TAPE HFC 02 - 78, Side A

#HB423
HOUSE BI LL NO. 423

An Act relating to the Al aska Rail road; authorizing the
Al aska Railroad Corporation to provide financing for

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



t he acqui sition, construction, i nprovenent,
mai nt enance, equi pping, or operation of facilities for
the transportation of natural gas resources within and
outside the state by others; authorizing the Al aska
Rai |l road Corporation to issue bonds to finance such
facilities; and providing for an effective date.

NEI L SLOTNI CK, DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE,
spoke in support of the |egislation. He observed that the
initial review indicated that public financing could not be
used for private activity. There are sonme exceptions to
that rule, with a private activity cap for $225 nillion
dollars, which the State does have access to. That cap is
al nost always fully subscribed to because Al aska Housi ng and
Fi nance Corporation (AHFC) use it for sonme of THEIR housi ng
finance needs. None of the exceptions fit into sonething as
| arge as a gas pipeline. M. Slotnick pointed out that
there was one other exception and that there could be a
“speci al congressional” exception to the requirenent.

M. Slotnick noted that is where is was left when sone
outside advisors, bond counsel and the investnent bank,
ol dman and Saks, canme to the Departnent of Revenue and
informed the State of a special State exception that already
exists in federal law, the Railroad Transfer Act. He
poi nted out that a copy of that statute had been included in
menber’s packets, USC Title 45, Chapter 21, the Railroad
Transfer Act, Section 12.07.A6A (Copy on File). The
exception allows the railroad to borrow noney on a tax-
exenpt basis for purposes, which would include the financing
of a transportation project of a natural gas pipeline. I n
addition, the Railroad would not have to take ownership of
t he pi peline.

M. Slotnick explained that would be terned “conduit”
f i nanci ng. He referred to Page 4 of the handout and the
financing of the marine termnal by the Cty of Valdez.
That City, using its tax-exenpt financing status, did the
financi ng but Val dez did not have to undertake the ownership
of the marine termnal. They did not have to use their own
credit-at-risk to issue bonds. The bonds are guaranteed by
the credit of the underlying conpanies. The State is using
the same analogy to explain what can be done for the gas
pipeline. The lawin the Railroad Transfer Act is a unique,
speci al exception that does not have the sane |imtations of
other practices trying to do private activity financing.

M. Slotnick explained how the financing would nove forward
in the market. He referred to the Canadi an gas pipeline.
That project was 70% debt and 30% equity, which is about the
nost debt that the market would allow the State of Al aska to
undert ake. The market wants to guarantee that there is a
princi pal behind the financing that has its own capital at

House Fi nance Committee 15 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



risk. Tax-exenpt financing runs at about 20% - 25% | ess
t han taxabl e financing.

M. Slotnick referenced the “Al aska Gas Pipeline Financing
Al ternatives” handout. (Copy on File). He noted Page 12
“Taxabl e versus Tax-Exenpt: Goss Interest Cost”. He
commented that the best way to determine the savings is by
preparing a present value analysis. There would be
approximately a $1 billion dollar savings if the producers
had access to tax exenpt financing through the Railroad. He
reviewed sone of the assunptions used in preparing the
anal ysi s:

. The <credit would be backed by conpanies
t hrough a ship or pay contract.
. I f project financing was used, it was assuned

that there would be approximately an 8.5%
interest rate with 6.5%tax exenpt;

. Four year construction period; and
. Twenty-five year bond issue.

M. Slotnick explained why the State l|egislation was
necessary even with the federal authorization. The feds
gave the authority, but when the State purchased the
Railroad, it did not give authority to issue bonds for a gas
pi peline transportation project. The |egislation authorizes
the sale of bonds in the market for a project that is backed
by contracts with the producers.

JEFF BROWN, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), GOLDMAN AND
SACKS, spoke in support of the |egislation. He observed
that there would be a 20-year anortization on the debt. The
Governor's nunber of $1 billion dollars could be Iarger
given nore aggressive assunptions. He conplinented the
Al aska State Departnment of Revenue for their detail ed work.

In response to a question by Vice-Chair Bunde, M. Slotnick
noted that producers do not feel that there is enough
incentive. The Departnent’s assunptions were based on a $17
billion dollar project and a $3 barrel of gas would have |ed
the State to the sane concl usion.

Vice-Chair Bunde estimated that a substantial return on the
i nvest nent woul d be needed.

M. Slotnick did not know what the hurdle rate would be for
t he producers.

Representative Davies observed that there are concerns
regardi ng the application of the Railroad Act.

M. Slotnick noted that the IRS has not been consulted on
t he i ssue.

House Fi nance Committee 16 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



ERI C WOHLFORTH, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), ECONOM ST,
ANCHORAGE, explained that it was adequate and conplete for
the Railroad to undertake tax exenpt financing of the gas

line when the Legislature authorizes that project. The
Rai |l road | acks the power to issue bonds; consequently, the
bill is needed. Once the bill passes, the Railroad woul d be

legally able to nove forward with the pipeline-financing
proj ect.

Representative Davies asked about the issues around the IRS
re-aut horization.

M. Wohl forth explained that the federal authorization path
cleared without conflicts or anbiguities. It was clarified
that there could not be specific exenptions. There is no
doubt that there is <clear authority to undertake the
proj ect.

Representative Hudson asked about the problem between the
Railroad and the pipeline and the restrictions upon the
Railroad’ s use of the tax-free borrow ng capacity.

M. Whlforth advised that the financing of a gas pipeline
is wthin the charter authority of the Railroad and the
Railroad was authorized to wundertake financing for that
purpose. It would be used for transportation.

Representative Hudson asked who would own the $1 billion
dol | ar asset.

M. Whlforth explained that the gas pipeline would remain
within the ownership as if no public financing had taken
pl ace and would be a pass through, non-recourse financing.
It would be a financing not involving the change of
owner shi p. There would be |egal support of the bonds, but
it would not allow any transfer of ownership.

Representative Hudson asked clarification that the State
woul d no | onger have the asset value of $1 billion dollars
if the Railroad secures the tax-free funds.

M. Whlforth agreed and added that the State woul d not have
ownership in the gas pipeline were financed.

Representative Croft asked if it was assuned was that the
producers would own it.

M. Whlforth thought that question should be left to
Departnent of Revenue.

M. Brown added that the shippers for the oil conpanies
woul d own the pipeline and that they would be able to take

House Fi nance Committee 17 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



the depreciation benefits on the pipeline. He expl ai ned
that was inportant because:

. The ownership is a huge econom c issue; and

. The Governor’s Pipeline Counsel recomended
that the State not own the pipeline.

Representative Croft asked if the “shippers” were the people
who own the right to the oil.

M. Brown comrented that the shippers could either be those
who own the oil or the “ultimte” custoners.

Representative Croft wunderstood that the nore financially
secure the entity, the less advantage they get from the
st at us. He asked if it was correct that a corporation as
sol vent as Exxon, would receive less of a benefit than an
i ndependent pi pel i ne conpany.

M. Brown agreed that was a “fair assunption”. Wth nost
big projects, there is an advantage to the user of the
pipeline in order for it to be project financed. That
m nimzes the expensive equity put in. Different conpanies
will TlTook at it differently. Initially, only a few
conpani es were registered but as it becanme a success, twenty
or thirty conpanies canme on board. That is why conpanies
appreciate doing their own balancing rather than using a
proj ect bal ance sheet.

Representative Croft asked the different nodels created
between a conpany owned by an independent versus the
pr oducer.

M. Brown noted that if an AAA oil conpany were financing it
long term and using relatively |ess debt, versus a BBB
pi pel i ne conpany, the benefit would be very different.

Representati ve Wi taker asked if the m d-point savings would
be $1 billion dollars over a twenty-year tine period and if
it would be weighted equally over the course of the twenty
years.

M. Slotnick stated that was not accurate as that is not the
manner in which the municipal bond market works. The full
advantage of the tax exenption is not yet provided.
Bondhol ders do not like to take long-termtax risk. The $1
billion dollars value is the present value and in actuality,
it would be nore like $5 billion dollars real terns.

M. Brown noted that the raw nunbers amounted to nearly $100
mllion dollars per year.

House Fi nance Committee 18 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



Representative Witaker thought that the $100 mllion
present dollar per year value added to an expected return,
by the State’s assunption would not get the project “over
the hurdle”. He clainmed that the producers were seeking
anot her nunber.

M. Slotnick advised that the economsts had plugged in
various assunptions over the years. He did not know what
was a reasonabl e projection.

Representative Witaker referenced the $163 nmillion dollar
FYO5 fiscal note projection, a contractual expense to be
paid by bond proceeds. He questioned what the $163 nillion
dol lars woul d be used for.

M. Slotnick advised that would be used for the expense of
i ssuing bonds. It would be paid to bond counsel
underwriters and financial advisors. The decision wuld be
left up to the Railroad, as they would be the contracting
entity. M. Slotnick suggested that future questioning be
directed to the Railroad. He advised that he had spoken
with the Railroad to help develop the procedures for going
to market. The agencies involved are Al aska Housi ng Fi nance
Corporation (AHFC), Al aska Industrial Export & Devel opnent
Aut hority (AIDEA), and the Departnent of Revenue.

Vi ce- Chair Bunde asked who woul d pay the cost.

M. Slotnick explained that the cost would be paid by the
Rai | road and woul d be rei nbursed through the proceeds of the
bond sal e. The eventual payer would be the owner of the
pi pel i ne.

Representative Witaker comented that the cost would be
reflected in the tariff. He assuned that the State of
Al aska woul d essentially be paying the $160 mllion dollar
cost.

M. Slotnick acknow edged that the cost of issuance of the
bonds would be reflected in the tariff, even if it were
t axabl e t hrough taxabl e bonds or through tax-exenpt bonds.

DAN  FAUSKE, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), EXECUTI VE
DI RECTOR, ALASKA HOUSI NG FI NANCE CORPORATI ON, DEPARTMENT OF
REVENUE, WASHI NGTON D.C., stated that there are a |ot of
questions that need to be answered in reference to the IRS

He noted that those concerns are beyond the control of AHFC

and the |egislators. He commented that the proposed
| egislation was a very "do-able" deal. However, the IRS
agents or U S. Congress could question the deal. He stated
that it is inportant that the State put itself in a position
to act on the proposed deal. He believed that would send a
strong nessage to Congress about Alaska's preparedness to
undertake the deal. Additionally, it would send a nessage

House Fi nance Committee 19 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



to the oil and gas industry that the project is do-able and
in the case of dollars, tax exenpt financing would be a step
in the right direction to nmake the project viable.

M. Fauske referenced the fiscal note and the underwiting
costs. The costs are built in on how to price that bond.
M . Fauske did not know how those costs woul d be paid.

JOHN BI TNEY, LEG SLATIVE LI AISON, ALASKA HOUSI NG FI NANCE
CORPORATI ON, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, referenced the handout
distributed, “Presentation to the House Finance Conm ttee by
Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation, April 9, 2002". ( Copy
on File). He noted that the information in the handout is a
replica of what AHFC provided to the Alaska Railroad for
preparing the tax-exenpt finance bond.

JCE DUBLER, CHI EF FI NANCAL OFFI Cl ER, ALASKA HOUSI NG FI NANCE
CORPORATI ON, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, introduced the team of
participants with AHFC and financial advisors that were on
l'ine.

M. Dubler spoke to the assuned a 30-year term He clained
that AHFC s proposed nunbers were nobre aggressive. He
referenced the booklet and the tax-exenpt bond issuance:

. Sel ecting appropriate professionals such as
the financial, tax, legal, and financing
specific experts;

. Performng feasibility analysis such as tax,
financial, and project analysis;

. Devel opi ng optinmal finance structure such as
coordination wth users of project;

. Cenerating | ocal support;

. Providing information to the public; and

. Responding to rating agency concerns and

obtaining a rating.

TAPE HFC 02 - 78, Side B

. Marketing the bonds with the institutional
and the retail investors; and
. Provi di ng continui ng disclosure.

Representative Witaker thought that there should be nore
t han one approach to the bond issue.

M. Bitney explained that AHFC was hoping that based upon
their experience in providing the “lion’s share” of tax
financing to the State, they would show the types of things
that are necessary to undertake that type of financing. HB

House Fi nance Committee 20 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



423 woul d authorize the Alaska Railroad for the federal tax
exenption. The passage of the bill would be financing under
the auspicious of the Al aska Railroad. At that point, it
would be the obligation of that agency to conduct the
fi nanci ng.

Representative \Whitaker asked if there would be an
opportunity for the State to gain sone of that portion back.

M. Wohlforth explained that in 1974, the Cty of Val dez was
part of the first financing. The City charged 1% and has
continued to charge that fee for recent refinancing,
extending the termto 2031. Wth the 1% increased aid fee
the City has charged, they now have a permanent fund in the
order of approximately $55 mllion dollars. That could be a
consideration for the Railroad.

Representative Wi taker questioned if the AHFC approach was
different fromthe approach put forward by the Departnent of
Revenue.

M. Bitney responded that there have been no decisions
regarding the specific approach of how to address the
concern. AHFC is providing a series of necessary steps in
order that it can happen. The key rests with the selection
of the people involved in structuring the financing.

Representative Witaker asked if the State was on the
correct financing course.

M. Bitney did not know of any problens at this point. It
is a process that needs to be driven by the Railroad.

Representative Whitaker comented on the nature of the
transaction and the value it could have for serving the
State of Al aska. He suggested that if AHFC should becone
aware of sonething in the ©process that was “non-
conpetitive”, they would conme forward and warn the
Adm ni stration.

M. Dubler explained that to the extend that AHFC was
involved in any transaction, they will take steps to insure
t he process.

Representative Witaker asked who would insure that the
process was procedurally conpetitive and in conpliance with
how t he public process is conducted.

M. Bitney advised that at this point in the process, AHFC
is not in charge of the financing, pointing out that right
now, AHFC is only addressing the process needed to get the
procedure started.

House Fi nance Committee 21 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



M. Dubl er explained that the neeting presentation had been
encouraged by Al aska Railroad and was not intended to be a
secondary or alternate approach.

Represent ati ve Wi taker asked who is in charge.
M. Dubler explained that the Railroad is in charge.

M . Fauske noted that AHFC was asked to prepare advi ce based
on their experience. There are a couple of agencies
i nvol ved that have extensive experience in financing. These
agencies stand on the position that offering assistance
would help show the way for the transaction to happen.
Al aska Railroad will be issuing the bonds and they have no
experience in doing that. Wth a nodel in place, AFHC
Al DEA and the State would be the best and nost effective tax
nodel s.

M. Fauske nentioned that with a “deal” this large, it is
inportant to get as many outside firnms as possible involved

to help market it. It is inperative that the Al aska
Rai |l road authority will reside with that entity and that the
Rai |l road has absolute control over the financing. He
advi sed that there have been no discussions other than how
to approach the issue with the underwiters. M. Fauske

urged that the idea nove forward as it would nean a great
deal for the State and to the Nation.

M CHAEL HURLEY, PHI LLIPS ALASKA, ANCHORAGE, spoke in support
of HB 423. He noted that Phillips Al aska has reviewed the

concept enbodied in the bill. Conduit financing does have
the potential to benefit the gas pipeline project.
Additional clarity in several areas wll be needed. He
added that Phillips Alaska is continuing to evaluate the
inpacts nore fully. At this tinme, Phillips Al aska supports

passage of the legislation, which would provide the
aut hori zation necessary if the project were to becone a
vi abl e alternative.

Representative Whitaker asked who M. Hurley previously
repr esent ed.

M. Hurley noted that in the past, he had represented three
conpani es, Exxon Mbil, British Petroleum and Phillips
Al aska.

JERRY MCCUTHEQN, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), ANCHORAGE,
clainmed that there will not be a gas pipeline out of Al aska
in our lifetine. He spoke to concerns regarding the C’'s
and C3’s. The project would need about five trains a day.
He comrented that it could be done, if the State was willing
to pay for the track. Antrak is requesting billions of
dol | ars. Antrak and the Alaska Railroad are the two
eligible entities for those billions for which Antrak

House Fi nance Committee 22 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



desperately needs. He said that the current system of
putting the gas liquids in a hot oil line is wasteful.

Vi ce-Chair Bunde suggest ed t hat t here shoul d be
opportunities for future legislators to "weigh-in" or review
the procedures. He warned about the size of the project and
t he amount of oversight that it will need.

PAUL FUHS, YUKON PACI FI C CORPORATI ON, spoke in support of
the proposed | egislation. He noted that when it was first
proposed, it could only be used for a pipeline through
Canada. The Ol and Gas Conmittee did anend the bill to
all ow other options including the pipelines to tide water in
Al aska.

M. Fuhs pointed out that the State is attenpting to nmake an
econom ¢ nodel of a project available to the G| and Gas

Commttee in contrast to other projects. M. Fuhs noted
that there have been rates of returns indicated in the range
proposed by Vice-Chair Bunde. If the railroad nodel could

i nprove the financing, those rates would inprove nore.

He clained that there is a huge fight regarding who wll get
the value added for the project. At this tine, there are 18
alternative proposals. He stated that he would nake the
handout about the alternative nean proposals available to
the Coonmttee. (Copy on File). Two tests need to be used to
determ ne whether the project is feasible:

. The first is the econom c anpbunt being put
forward and whether the market would be
buyi ng that gas; and

. Whet her the bonds can be sold. People w |
need to believe in the econonmcs of the
proj ect.

Co-Chair WIllians noted that HB 423 would be HELD in
Commttee for further consideration.
#

ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 4:45 P. M

House Fi nance Committee 23 04/ 09/ 02 1:58 PM



